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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Kathleen A. Dunn FAX: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-803-735-2964

Associate
Commissioner

June 3, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Developmental Services to
exercise a renewal option to an existing Agreement with Coos County Family Health Services, Inc., 54
Willow Street, Berlin, New Hampshire 03570, Vendor Number 155327-B001, to provide a Registered
Nurse to be the Nurse Coordinator for the Berlin Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program that provides
community-based evaluation and consultation services for children with neuromotor disabilities and
their by increasing the price limitation by $41,461.78 from $42,332.00 to an amount not to exceed
$83,793.78, and extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1,
2015 or on the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. The Agreement was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on July 10, 2013 (Item #54). 30% Federal Funds, 70%
General Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the foliowing accounts in State
Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitaton and to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without
approvai from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-5191 DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVSC, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Current Increase/ Revised

State Fiscal Budget Decrease Budget

Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2014 561-50091 Specialty Clinics $21,166.00 $21,166.00
2015 561-50091 Specialty Clinics $21,166.00 $21,166.00
2016 561-50091 Specialty Clinics $0 $20,730.89 $20,730.89
2017 561-50091 Specialty Clinics $0 $20,730.89 $20,730.89
Total $42,332.00 $41,461.78 $83,793.78




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Department to continue to provide a Registered Nurse
to be the Nurse Coordinator for the Special Medical Services Section's Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical
Program, Berlin site. The Nurse Coordinator shall take primary responsibility for coordinating the
planning and management of clinic and community-based health care, and shall ensure continuity and
follow-ups of children with neuromotor handicaps and their families residing in the assigned regional
project site.

Currently, the Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program operates clinics in six locations: Berlin,
Concord, Derry, Keene, Lebanon and Manchester. These services shall be provided at the Berlin
(North Country) Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program.

The model of service delivery consolidates clinical evaluation services of children and families in
community-based locations for economy of scale and long-term stability of the medical evaluation team.
Members of the medical evaluation team provide consuitation services to the local community for
school observations and technical assistance related to the complex needs of children with neuromotor
problems. Continuity of care is assured based on ongoing contact with the Nurse Coordinator. It is
estimated that a total of 25-30 children will be served during SFY 2016-2017.

This Contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.
The original Agreement and Governor and Council letter contains an option to renew the
contract for two additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance

of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department and the Contractor
have agreed to extend the contract for two additional years.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this Request, approximately
25 — 30 children with neuromotor handicaps and their families in Coos County would not have access
to coordinated planning and management of clinic and community-based health care.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 70% General funds and 30% Federa! Title V Block Grant Funds from the
United States Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Title V
Block Grant Funds, CFDA #93.994 and FAIN #B04MC23394.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorene Reagan

Director

Approved by: &‘Tm ‘%-n
icholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens fo achieve health and indevendence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hurman Services
Amendment #1 to the Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic

This first Amendment to the Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #1") dated May 18, 2015, is between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the “State” or
“Department”) and Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “the Contractor”),
a nonprofit corporation, located at 54 Wiliow Street, Berlin, NH, 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July
10, 2013 (ltem #54) (hereinafter referred to as the “Contract”), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contracior have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37),
and the provisions of Exhibit C-1 paragraph 5, the State may renew the contract by the way of a 2-year
extension, subject to availability of funding and priorities, satisfactory performance of the Scope of
Services, the Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties
thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and extend the completion date of
the Contract by two (2) years; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this Amendment #1,
the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7, Completion Date, by extending the date to
June 30, 2017.

3. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: $83,793.78.

4. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency to read:
Eric Borrin, Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.10, to read: (603) 271-9558.
6. Amend Standard Exhibit A, Scope of Services, DATE, by extending the date to June 30, 2017.

7. Amend Standard Exhibit A, Scope of Services, CONTRACT PERIOD, by extending the date to
June 30, 2017.

8. Delete in its entirety Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment and replace with
Exhibit B Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-1 Budget, and Exhibit B-2.
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. Contractor Initials:

Amendment #1
Page 1 of 3 Date: (1-$~



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic

70, Delefe in its enfirety Standard Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Exhibi G, special
Provisions.

11. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, paragraph 3.
12. Add Exhibit C-2.

13. Amend Standard Exhibit D, Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, Period
Covered by this Certification, by extending the end date to June 30, 2017.

14. Amend Standard Exhibit E, Certification Regarding Lobbying, Contract Period, by extending the
end date to June 30, 2017.

15, Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities
Act Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with Requirements
Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and
Whistieblower Protections.

16. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit |, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1, Health Insurance
Portability Act Business Associate Agreement.

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHERECF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Gl ks Coastl fo/

Date Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH 7
Associate Commissioner

COOj County Family Health Services, Inc.

— / ‘-.// l . \ J’
¢ A .84 N\ ey
Date NA 7
/ TITL
Acknowledgement: GI
State of N , County of b on $) / 21 / /5’. , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

N&me and Title ofiNotary or Justice ﬂf the Peace

A BLANCHETTE, Notary Public
Mycommission Expires September 18, 2018

) \
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. Contractor Initials: 14 _
Amendment #1 L ‘\(

Page 2 of 3 Date: 6;’ ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, 1s approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

o fa/iS PAINAVY
] TR

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved bymovernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Amendment #1
Page 3 of 3




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, of the
General Provisions (Form P-37) of this Agreement in consideration for the Contractor's compliance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Contract is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #'s, for the provision of services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
follows:

2.1. 93.994 United States Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and
Services Administration, Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant

2.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with
funding requirements.

3. Payment for contracted services will be made on a cost reimbursement basis only, for allowable
expenses, in accordance with the Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 Budget.

4. Reimbursements for services provided shall be made by the State on a monthly basis after receipt,
review and approval of monthly expenditure reports submitted by the Contractor to the State.

5. Monthly Expenditure Reports, which are based on a budget approved by the Stale (defined in
Paragraph 3, above), shall be in a form approved by the State and shall be submitted no later than
twenty (20) working days after the close of the month. In addition to the monthly expenditure reports
required and not later than sixty (60) days after the end of the budget period, the Contractor shall
submit a final expenditure report in a form satisfactory to the State.

6. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs
and expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the
Services. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such
payments for capital additions or improvements, dues to societies and organizations, entertainment
costs or any other costs not approved by the State. The Contractor must also have written
authorization from the State prior to purchasing any equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred
dollars ($500) and/or with a useful life beyond one (1) year.

7. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the NH General Court may
impact on the services described herein, the State retains the right to modify expenditure
requirements under this agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an amendment,
limited to the budgets, Exhibits B-1 through B-2, to adjust amounts within the budgets and between
State Fiscal Years, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

9. The Contractor will submit, for Department approval, a written request, with programmatic
justification, to adjust amounts within the budgets or between State Fiscal Years.

Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 2 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

10. In the event of a vacancy in any of the key personnel positions, the Department’s Special Medical

11.

Services Section is authorized to direct any and all budget revisions deemed necessary and
appropriate by the Administrator 10 assure continuity of services as outlined in Exhibit A, including the
cost of advertisement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or
State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or products
have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2 Date _:




Exhibit B-1 Budget

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program
Budget Request for: Speciaity Clinic
Name of Program

Budget Period: 7/1/15-6/30/16

o : T :
1. Total Salary/WWages $ 11456841 $ -1% 11,456.84
2. Employee Benefits $ 3437051 % -18 3,437.05
3. Consultants b -13 -13% -
4. Equipment: $ -13 -18 -
Rental $ -1 8 -18 -
Repair and Maintenance 3 1,00000] 8 -1% 1,000.00
Purchase/Depreciation 5 -1 8 -18 -
5. Supplies: 3 -18 -15 -
Educational 3 -1 3 -13 -
Lab $ -1 % -1% -
Pharmacy $ -13 -13% -
Medical $ -183 -1$ -
Office $ 1,374.00] -18 1,374.00
6. Travel $ 300001 % 1% 300.00
7. Occupancy $ 220000] 8 -8 2,200.00
8. Current Expenses $ -18 -13 -
Telephone % 1% -1s .
Postage 3 -18 -15 -
Subscriptions 3 -18% -18 -
Audit and Legal and Insurance $ 663.00] 3% -13 663.00
Board Expenses $ -13 -1% -
$ -13 -18% -
9. Software $ -13 -18 -
10. Marketing/Communications 3 -18% -13 -
11. Staff Education and Training $ -18 -13 -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 3 -1 3 -15 -
13. Qther (specific details mandatory): $ -13 -15 -
Cultural/Linguistic Support $ 30000] 3 -8 300.00
$ -13 -1% -
$ -13% -18 -
$ -1% -15 -
$ -13 -15 -
$ -18 -185 -
TOTAL $ 20,730.89 | $ -18 20,730.89 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Wi

Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials:_Te _
Page 1 of 1 Date: l-{



Exhibit B-2 Budget

BUDGET FORM
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Bidder Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Nurse Coordinator - Neuromotor Disabilities Program
Budget Request for: Specialty Clinic
Name of Program
Budget Period: 7/1/16-6/30/17
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 11,456.84 | § -1% 11,456.84
2. Employee Benefits 5 3437051 % -13% 3,437.05
3. Consultants $ -185 -18 -
4 Equipment: $ -15 -18 -
Rental $ -18% -18 -
Repair and Maintenance $ 1,00000] % -1% 1,000.00
Purchase/Depreciation $ -15 -15 -
5. Supplies: $ -15% -13 -
Educational $ -18 -15 -
Lab $ -185 I -
Pharmacy 3 -1 8 -18 -
Medical $ -18 -18 -
Office $ 137400 | § -13 1,374.00
6. Travel 3 300.00 | $ -18 300.00
7. Qccupancy 3 220000] % -} 8 2,200.00
8. Current Expenses $ -13 -13 -
Telephone $ -1 3 -1$ -
Postage $ -13 -1% -
Subscriptions $ -13 -1% -
Audit and Legal and Insurance $ 663.001 3 -18 663.00
Board Expenses $ -1 8 -13 -
$ -13 -18 -
9. Software $ -1% -1% -
10. Marketing/Communications $ -1% -13% -
11. Staff Education and Training § -15 -18 -
12. SubcontractsfAgreements $ -15 -13 -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -15% -1s3 R
Cultural/Linguistic Support $ 30000 % -1 5 300.00
|Regional F&S Patient Services $ -15 -13 -
& -13 -13% -
3 -13 -15 -
3 -1 % -18 -
3 -15 -13% -
TOTAL $ 20,730.89 | § -1 $ 20,730.89 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Exhibit B-2 Budget Contractor Initials: K
Page 1 of 1 Date: § E{ k’|§



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinaticns shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpese and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditicns of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, orat a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Pravisions Contractor Initials K
0627114 Page 1 0of 5 Date 2=ty



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrofls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 80 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Qrganizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQO standards}) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

g.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of cbligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disaliowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the perfermance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

\ f
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

11,

12.

13.

14.

15.

18.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and cbjectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract andfor
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available ar
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Emplo yment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor initials %3
- -
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Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEQP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EECP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www . ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert pdf,

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
diserimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

{a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.8.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractar’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

s
i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcentractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: Far each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

4

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor initials _Y
06127714 Page 5 of 5 Date T:ﬂ(ﬁ" (8
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Exhibit C-2

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1

Comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence with additional umbrella liability insurance coverage of not less than
$2,000,000.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEELOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinguency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity),

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (28 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1872 {20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity, Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equat protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighberhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub, L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

T L}
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

; ) . \ :
2 e \f\‘?! l\__-;‘/;g/;)_-.ﬂ
Date ! Name: _
" ; T;:e k 5-"‘5_? 6#4(‘_\1-.‘-1% (_',.z ) L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

{1) Definitions.
a. "Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate’ has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

I. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a viotation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHIl to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i}
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

s
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {I}. The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PH! to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PH! available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fuffill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials -
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHL.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) [, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

W\/\?)ﬂi QWTMHMS‘/’(\AUE . ‘)UL T;M.H '\‘L_LLa-l/l}iL-x:?;
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SBtate of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 14, 1979. 1 further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8" day of April, A.D. 2015

g Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

/KDM "% lﬂ ,f)a{' , of, Coos County Family Health Services do hereby certify that:
I am the duly elected l EX‘»Q[A ‘P NS ,"(LQI T of Coos County Family Health Services
Inc.
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of the Coos County Family Health Services corporation, duly held on February 19,
2015;
RESOLVED: That this corporation may enter into any and all contracts, amendments, renewals,
revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its Department
of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, and/or Division of Community-

Based Care Services.

RESOLVED: That the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, or Chief Executive Officer is hereby
authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State and to execute any
and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or
4‘njdiﬁcations thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate.

i g ken\ %\:\ice\-)oi is the duly appointed \L 852 5?&‘&' It \..u,c-.'o

of the corporatior?,

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and
effect as of Maﬁi Q1 2015 .
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the !E)("‘\Q(d fgfs[dfnl of the
corporation this & | day of Mau L2008
‘ (
STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

-

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this & l day of MQ,L[ , 20 b

by_?obﬂd ﬂedd“)d

ff * Y, i
Ay et
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: My LINDA BLANCHETTE, Nolary P;'g.“me

(Certificate of Vote/Authority) 2/15



STATE CONTRACT RESOLUTIONS:

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into any and all contracts, amendments, renewals,
revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its Department
of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, and/or Division of Community-

Based Care Services.

RESOLVED: That the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, or Chief Executive Officer is hereby
authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State and to execute any
and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or

modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate.

(State Contract Resolutions)
CCFHS Board Approved 2/19/15
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 7/16/2014

- )
ACORD
L—/

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy({ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A staterment on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GNIACT vivian Vaudreuil

FIAI/Cross Insurance oM £y (603)669-3218 | FB% \o): (603) 645-4331

1100 Elm Street Ablﬁlé§s:vvaudreuil@crossagency.com

INSURER(S)AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 insurer a:Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED insurer B Philadelphia Ins Co
Coos County Family Health Services insurerc MEMIC Indemnity Company 11030
133 Pleasant Street INSURER D

INSURERE :
Berlin NH 03570-2006 INSURERF :
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MISSION OF
COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

Cobds County Family Health Services is a community-based organization providing innovative,
personalized, comprehensive health care and social services of the highest quality to everyone,
regardless of economic status.

(Mission/Vision Statement)
Board Approved 1/15/15
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors” Report on Financial Statements

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coos County Family Health
Services, Inc. which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. as of June
30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizalions, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

2.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 11, 2014, on our consideration of the Association’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important
for assessing the results of our audit.

ANAYS

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
ASSETS
2014 2013
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 371,527 310,353
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances of
for uncollectible accounts of $218,000 and $195,000
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively 978,555 435,123
Grants receivable 143,394 242,150
Due from third party payers 40,105 31,737
Prepaid expenses 91,036 102,267
Total Current Assets 1,624,617 1,121,630
Assets Limited As To Use 651,351 625,069
Beneficial Interest In Perpetual Trust Held By Others 19,973 18,274
Property And Equipment, Net 2,619,138 2,100,494
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,915,079 3,865,467
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 257,195 83,220
Accrued payroll and related expenses 700,765 680,503
Due to third party payers - 21,057
Deferred revenue 26,724 60,282
Current maturities of long-term debt 59,139 79,892
Total Current Liabilities 1,043,823 024,954
Long-term Debt, Less Current Maturities 715,850 902,002
Total Liabilities 1,759,673 1,826,956
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 2,392,640 1,153,541
Temporarily restricted 740,809 864,280
Permanently restricted 21,957 20,690
Total Net Assets 3,155,406 2,038,511
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,915,079 3,865,467

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Operating Revenue:
Patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts, and contributions

Other operating revenue

Interest income

Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Interest expense

Total Operating Expenses

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
Grant Received For Capital Acquisition
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

2014 2013
7,524,240 5,817,776
(272,094) (269,804)
7,252,146 5,547,972
2,750,768 2,712,601
521,180 466,133
3,008 3,134
278,480 219,146
10,805,582 8,948,986
7,210,447 6,688,068
2,487,345 1,707,879
235,073 227,921
33,618 42,629
9,966,483 8,666,497
839,099 282,489
400,000 -
1,239,099 282,489

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Unrestricted Net Assets:
Excess of revenue over expenses
Grant received for capital acquisition

Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Grants, contracts, and contributions
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Capital appreciation on endowment funds
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others

Decrease in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Permanently Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions

Increase in Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning Of Year

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

2014 2013
$ 839,099 % 282,489
400,000 -

1,239,099 282,489
153,310 47,035
(278,480) (219,146)

- 530

1,699 274
(123,471) (171,307)

1,267 2,113

1,267 2,113

1,116,895 113,295
2,038,511 1,925,216

$ 3155406  $ 2,038,511

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Bad debt expense
Depreciation
Grant received for capital acquisition

Restricted grants, contracts, and contributions

Capital appreciation on endowment funds
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Due from third party payers
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third party payers
Deferred revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Decrease in assets limited as to use
Increase in beneficial interest in perpetual trust
held by others
Capital acquisitions

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Grant received for capital acquisition
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

2014 2013
1,116,895 113,295
272,094 269,804
235,073 227,921
(400,000) -
(154,577) (49,148)
- (530)
(1,699) (274)
(815,526) (328,193)
98,756 5,397
(8,368) 9,263
11,231 (39,682)
173,975 19,743
20,262 27,221
(21,057) 21,057
(33,558) (733,552)
493,501 (457,678)
128,295 57,351
. (18,000)
(753,717) (91,489)
(625,422) (52,138)
400,000 -
179,000 -
(385,905) (85,369)
193,095 (85,369)




COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 61,174 (595,185)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 310,353 905,538
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 371,527 $ 310,353
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow
Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 33,618 $ 42,629

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc., “the Organization”, is a non-stock, not-for-
profit corporation organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally
Qualified Health Center (FQHC) which provides outpatient health care and disease
prevention services to residents of Coos County, New Hampshire through direct services,
referral and advocacy.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. As a public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income
taxes on income earned in accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business
income is subject to state and federal income tax. Management has evaluated the
Organization’s tax positions and concluded that the Organization has no unrelated
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial
statements. Management believes the Agency is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for years prior to 2011.

Use of Estimates

The Organization uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eguivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, petty cash funds and
investments with a maturity of three months or less, and exclude amounts whose use is
limited by Board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements or with
third-party payers.



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In
evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes its past
history and identifies trends for each funding source. Management regularly reviews
data about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been
exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts. The
Organization has not changed its methodology for estimating the allowance for
doubtful accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 195,000 $ 187,000
Provision for bad debts 272,094 269,804
Write-offs (249,094) (261,804)
Balance, end of year $ 218,000 $ 195,000

The increase in the allowance for uncollectible accounts is primarily related to the
increase in patient accounts receivable balances.

Assets Limited As to Use

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside as a reserve fund under loan agreements
for repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loans and assets
designated by the board of directors and donor restricted grants and contributions.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts Held by Others

During 2013, the Organization became a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at
The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation, “the Foundation”, by transferring $18,000
of endowment assets to be held and administered by the Foundation for the benefit of
the Organization. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing the fund,
property contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the Organization. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation
makes distributions from the fund to the Organization. The distributions are
approximately 4.03% of the market value of the fund per year. The Organization’s
interest in the fund is recognized as permanently restricted net assets with changes in fair
value reported as temporarily restricted net assets.

-10-



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and
betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method and
is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-
imposed restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as
expenditures are made in line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor.
Restricted contributions and grants for capital acquisitions received prior to July 1, 2013
are released from restriction over the life of the related asset acquired in accordance
with the reporting of related asset’s depreciation expense. Restricted contributions and
grants released are reported as unrestricted revenue and support.

Permanently restricted net assets include net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the
donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on
related investments for general or specific purposes.

Patient Service Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to
the Organization at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the
payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

e Medicare -- Primary care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are
reimbursed under cost reimbursement methodology. The Organization is
reimbursed at a tentative encounter rate with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the Organization and audits thereof by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Organization’s Medicare cost reports have been
retroactively settled by the Medicare Administrative Contractor through June 30,
2012.

e Other payers - The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with
Medicaid certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
Organizations and preferred provider Organizations. The basis for payment to
the Organization under these agreements includes prospectively determined
rates per visit, discounts from established charges and capitated arrangements
for primary care services on a per member, per month basis.

11-



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to
future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action
including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The
Organization believes that it is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations. However, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts
become known. The differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts
subsequently determined to be recoverable from third-party payers increased patient
service revenues by approximately $15,000 and $103,000 for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Organization, as a FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program.
The program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHC's and
other identified entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local
pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible
patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and commercial insurances on behalf of
the Organization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted to the
Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated from
the program is included in patient service revenue. Contracted expenses incurred
related to the program are included in other operating expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

Various program help and support for the daily operations of the Organization’s
Response Program were provided by the general public of the surrounding
communities. The donated services have not been reflected in the accompanying
financial statements because they did not meet the criteria for recognition.
Management estimates the fair value of donated services received but not recognized as
revenues was $102,510 and $92,187 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Response Program also receives donated supplies to be used for
program activities. The fair value of supplies recognized as revenues was $5,122 and
$3,606 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

12-



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

The Organization receives samples of medical supplies that are distributed to patients.
The donated supplies have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements
because they did not meet the criteria for recognition.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as
received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statement of operations includes the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets).

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE AND BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL
TRUST HELD BY OTHERS

Assets limited as to use and beneficial interest in perpetual trusts consisted of the
following at June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Board designated:

Working capital (Federal 330 monies) $ 507870 $ 505,025
United States Department of Agriculture

Rural Development loan agreements 29,640 36,589
Donor restricted:

Temporarily 111,857 81,039

Permanently 21,957 20,690

Total $ 671324 § 643,343

-13-



NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE AND BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL
TRUST HELD BY OTHERS (CONTINUED)})

2014 2013
Assets limited as to use $ 651,351 $ 625,069
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust
held by others 19,973 18,274
Total $ 671324 § 643343

Assets limited as to use are comprised of cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents included in assets limited as to use are not considered cash and cash
equivalents for cash flow purposes.

Financial accounting standards established a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the
inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad
levels as follows:

¢ Level 1 inputs - quoted prices traded daily in an active market.

e Level 2 inputs - other than quoted prices for active markets that are traded
less frequently than daily.

¢ Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs.

The fair value of the beneficial interest in perpetual trust held by others is measured on
non-recurring basis using level 3 inputs. The fair value is determined annually based on
the fair value of the assets in the trust as represented by the Foundation's management.
The Organization’s management determines the reasonableness of the methodology by
evaluating market developments.

The following table sets forth a summary of the change in the fair value of the level 3
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts held by others for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013.

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 18274 $ -
Contributions - 18,000
Change in fair value 2,527 1,069
Distributions (706) (703)
Fees (122) (92)
Balance, end of year $ 19973 § 18274
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NOTE3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The cost and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment at June 30, 2014 and
2013 follows:

2014 2013
Land and improvements $ 153,257 $ 153,257
Building and leasehold improvements 3,176,922 2,603,291
Furniture and equipment 1,752,474 1,572,389
Total Cost 5,082,653 4,328,937
Less accumulated depreciation 2,463,515 2,228 443
Property And Equipment, Net $ 2619138 $ 2,100,494

In 2010 the Organization made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant
funding under the ARRA - Capital Improvement Program. In 2014 the Organization also
made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant funding under the ACA -
Capital Development Program. In accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of
Federal Interest (NFI) is required to be filed in the appropriate official records of the
jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFl is designed to notify any prospective
buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in the real property
acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not be used for any
purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and applicable
regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal
Assistance Management, Health Resources and Services Administration (OFAM, HRSA);
and that the property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written
permission of the Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.

NOTE4 LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $500,000 line of credit with a local banking institution through
December 2014, The line of credit is secured by all assets. The interest rate at June 30, 2014
was 4.75% (Prime plus 1.5%). The Organization is also required to pay 0.25% monthly on
the unused portion of the line. There was no outstanding balance at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

-15-



NOTE5 LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2014 and 2013 long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the
following:
2014 2013

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $1,285, including interest at 3.375%, due
May 2042, secured by real estate. $ 277,878 $ 283,846

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $2,741, including interest at 4.5%, due
November 2028, secured by all business assets. 347,376 364,127

Note payable, New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Authority (NH HEFA),
payable in monthly installments of $3,060
including interest at 1.00%, due August 2018,
secured by real estate. 149,735 -

Note payable, Citizens Bank, payable in variable
monthly installments of $4,723 plus interest,
3.25% as of June 30, 2014, due February 2018,
secured by real estate. The note was paid
in full in May 2014 - 209,722

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $2,268, including interest at 6.125%, due
November 2018, secured by real estate. The
note was refinanced by the NH HEFA loan
in August 2013. - 124,199

Total long-term debt 774,989 981,894
Less current maturities 59,139 79,892

Long-term Debt Excluding
Current Maturities $ 715850 § 902,002
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NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter
follows:

Year Ending Long-term
June 30, Debt
2015 $ 59,139
2016 60,514
2017 61,937
2018 63,411
2019 34,170
Thereafter 495,818
Total 5 774,989

NOTE 6 TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30,
2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Temporarily restricted:
Specific purpose $ 109884 % 79,703
Expended capital improvements 628,952 783,241
Endowment earnings 1,973 1,336
Total $ 740809 $ 864280
Permanently restricted:
Endowment $ 21957 § 20690

NOTE7 ENDOWMENTS

The Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies
as a donor restricted endowment (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor restricted
endowment gifts and (c) accumulations to the donor restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund.
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NOTE7 ENDOWMENTS (CONTINUED)

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed

by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment

funds:
(1)  The duration and preservation of the fund
(2)  The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment
fund
{3)  General economic conditions
(4)  The possible effect of inflation and deflation
(3)  The expected total return from income
(6)  Other resources of the Organization
The following summarizes changes in endowment assets for years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013:
Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 530 $ 18,577
Contributions - 2,113
Investment income, net of fees 532 -
Change in fair value of beneficial interest
in perpetual trust held by others 274 -
Balance June 30, 2013 1,336 20,690
Contributions - 1,267
Appropriation of endowment assets
for expenditures (1,062) -
Change in fair value of beneficial interest
in perpetual trust held by others 1,699 -
Balance June 30, 2014 $ 1,973 21,957

Endowment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and a beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others. Endowment interest income earned is spent at the
discretion of the Organization’s Board of Directors.
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NOTE 8 PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

A summary of patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Medical patient service revenue $ 5,729,532 % 5,817,776
340B pharmacy revenue 1,794,708 -
Total Patient Service Revenue $ 7,524,240 $5,817.776

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity
care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the
Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care, the revenue is recorded net of the free care allowance. The Organization estimates
the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to
total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges
associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of
providing services to patients under the Organization charity care policy amounted to
$353,281 and $401,411 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received
through local community support and federal and state grants.

NOTE 9 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Organization provides various services to residents within its geographic location.
Expenses related to providing these services for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Program services $ 8751,900 $ 7,532,513
Administrative and general 1,214,583 1,133,984
Total $ 9966483 $ 8,666,497
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NOTE 10 MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as a FQHC under the
Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice
insurance, on a claims-made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the
FTCA. As of the year ended June 30, 2014, there were no known malpractice claims
outstanding which in the opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of
both FTCA and gap insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents
which require loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage
will be available.

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section
401(k) that cover substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $160,026
and $145,048 to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 12 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions in excess of $250,000,
which exceeds federal depository insurance limits. The financial institutions have a
strong credit rating and management believes the credit risk related to these deposits is
minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are local
residents and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The mix of medical patient
service revenue receivables from patients and third-party payers at June 30, 2014 follows:

Medicare 32%
Medicaid 13%
Anthem Blue Cross 17%
Other 38%

Total 100%
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NOTE 13 PATIENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

The Organization acts as a conduit for pharmaceutical company patient assistance
programs. The Organization provides assistance to patients in applying and distributing
prescription drugs under the programs. The value of the prescription drugs distributed
by the Organization to patients is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
The Organization estimates that the value of prescription drugs distributed by the
Organization for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $2,914,948 and $2,754,348,
respectively.

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management

through December 11, 2014, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct programs:
Health Center Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers 93.224 $ 1,442,547
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for
Capital Development in Health Centers 93.526 400,000
Total Health Center Cluster 1,842 547
Pass-through programs from:
State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services
Primary Care 93.994 102-500731/90080000 16,263
Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program 93.994 561-500911/93001000 6,305
Total Maternal and Child Health Services 22,568
State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services
Family Planning 93.217 102-500734 /90080203 32,014
Breast and Cervical Cancer Prevention 93.283 102-500731/90080081 28,584
Family Planning - TANF 93.558 502-500891/45130203 12,361
Oral Health 93.991 102-500731/90072003 43,359
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence:
Statewide Program to Improve Response
to Domestic Violence 93.671 60,433
Total Pass-through Programs 199,319
Total US. Department of Health and Human Services 2,041,866

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct programs:
Transitional Housing Assistance Grants for
Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
Stalking or Sexual Assault 16.736 32,915
Pass-through programs from:
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and

Sexual Violence :
Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 12,467
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 172,945
Total U.S. Department of Justice 218,327
Total Federal Awards, All Programs $ 2,260,193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, “the Schedule”, includes
the federal grant activity of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.., “the Organization”,
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2014. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular
A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule, if any, represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to
amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers
are presented where available.
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
197 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 , and the related statements of operations, changes in
net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ANAYE

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
187 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The Organization’s major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-
133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Organization’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
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Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing

based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ANAYS

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section | - Summary of Auditor’'s Results

A. Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
» Material weakness(es} identified?
e Significant deficiency(s) identified?
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

B. Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major programs:
o Material weakness(es) identified?
¢ Significant deficiency(s) identified?

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133?

C. Major Programs
Health Center Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for Capital
Development in Health Centers

D. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs

E. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

-30-

Unmeodified
No

None Reported
No

No
None Reported

Unmodified

93.224

93.526

$300,000
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section I - Findings and Questioned Costs

A. Financial Statements

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2014.

B. Federal Awards

There were no federal awards findings for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Section ITI - Prior Findings and Questioned Costs for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

There were no prior financial statement or federal award audit findings for the year ended
June 30, 2013.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC,
54 WILLOW STREET - BERLIN, NH 03570
752-3669

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Robert Pelchat, 2017 (5™)
**PRESIDENT**

Retired Electronics Engineer
Chair, Executive Committee

Joan Merrill, 2016 (2"
**VICE-PRESIDENT**
Retired English Teacher
Finance/Development Committee
Governance Committee

Facilities Committee

Aline Boucher, 2017 (3rd)
**TREASURER**

Retired City Comptroller/Tax Collector
Chair, Finance Committee

Jeffrey D. Smith, 2015 (1*")
**SECRETARY**

Financial Services Manager

Chair, Corporate Compliance Committee
Personnel Committee

Marge McClellan, 2017 (5™)

Retired Executive Director — AV Home
Care

Chair, Governance Committee

Chair, Quality Improvement Committee

Asa Brosnan, 2015 (4™)
RN at Coos County Nursing Home
Governance Committee

H. Guyford Stever, Jr., 2016 (2"
Retired English Teacher

Chair, Personnel Committee
Finance/Development Committee
Quality Improvement Committee
Facilities Committee

Linda Sjostrom, 2015 (1%)
Financial Advisor

Andrea Gagne, 2016 (1%)
Division Director, Tri-County CAP
Finance/Development Committee

Charles Greenhalgh, 2017 (1*")
Attorney

Roland Olivier, 2017 (1*)
Attorney
Governance Committee

Christie Nelson, PsyD, 2017 (1)
Drug Abuse Program Coordinator

David Morin, 2017 (1%
Berlin Merchant — Morin Shoe Store

Robert Thompson
Project Manager - Berlin Public Schools
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KENNETH E. GORDON

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

2/2015 — Present Coos County Family Health Services, 54 Willow Street, Berlin, NH
03570 (603) 752-3669 ext. 4018 kgordon(@ccths.org

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (2015 — Present)

e Responsible for the successful administration and overall direction of a $10.2M
Community Health Center, including 6 sites and 10 programs. Major administrative
responsibilities include: oversight of budget preparation and fiscal management,
development and implementation of long and short-term planning, personnel
management, grantsmanship and public relations. Includes extensive contact with the
public and government officials as well as ongoing communications with 14 member
volunteer Board of Directors, 120 paid staff and numerous volunteers.

ADMINISTRATOR: North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire
(8/13 - 2/15)

s Provided administrative leadership of the North Country Accountable Care
Organization, a non-profit entity comprised of four community health centers
working in collaboration to improve the health and well-being of North Country
residents.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Area Agency on Aging for Northeastern Vermont, St. Johnsbury,
Vermont (9/02 — 7/13)

o Provided administrative leadership to a private, non-profit human service agency
serving older adults and family caregivers.

o Financial management of the organization’s budget.

» Supervision of clinical and administrative staff.

SOCIAL SERVICES COORDINATOR: Caledonia Home Health Care and Hospice, St
Johnsbury, Vermont (8/97 - 8/02)

e Provided medical social work to individuals and families receiving home care and
hospice services.

e Supervised and coordinated the work of four master’s level staff members.

e Provided consultation to medical staff regarding psycho-social issues.

e Participated in discharge planning with other social service and health agencies.



Kenneth E. Gordon Resume Page 2

CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICE WORKER: Vermont Department of Social &
Rehabilitation Services, St. Johnsbury, Vermont (5/96 - 8/97)

Coordinated multidisciplinary treatment teams providing services to families.
Psychosocial assessment & case planning.

Care Management (Medicaid reimbursable).

Individual and family counseling.

Placement and supervision of children in foster care.

Preparation of court reports.

ADOPTION SOCIAL WORKER: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johnsbury & Newport, Vermont (4/90 -9/94)

Recruitment, training and assessment of adoptive applicants.

Placement and supervision of abused and neglected children with adoptive families.
Counseling with birth parents considering the voluntary relinquishment of a child.
Consultation with casework staff regarding adoption issues.

Preparation of adoption homes studies and probate court reports.

FOSTER CARE COORDINATOR: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johnsbury, Vermont (12/86 - 4/90)

Managed a foster care program serving approximately fifty children.
Fiscal administration, program planning and evaluation.
Curriculum development and in-service training.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: Upward Bound Project, Lyndon State College (9/85 - 12/86)

Co-directed a college preparatory program for disadvantaged youth.
Formulated program goals and evaluated outcomes.

Co-authored a successful federal grant proposal totaling more than $400.00.
Training, supervision and evaluation of staff.

Academic and career counseling.

EDUCATION

MASTERS OF SOCIAL WORK (M.S.W.) May 1996. University of Vermont
o 1% year field internship: Reach Up Program, Vermont Department of Social Welfare
o 2™ year clinical internship: Fletcher Allen Health Care, Inpatient Psychiatric Unit

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (B.S.) Behavioral Science and Special Education. May, 1984.
Lyndon State College, Lyndonville, Vermont

REFERENCES

Available upon request



Patricia A. Couture

EDUCATION:

College:

New Hampshire Technical College, Berlin, NH,
Associate Nursing Degree, 1989 (May).
Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society.

New Hampshire Board of Nursing, Concord, NH,
License for Registered Nurse, 1990 (July).

New Hampshire Vocational Technical College, Berlin, NH
Practical Nursing Diploma, 1976 (June).
Graduated with Honors.

New Hampshire Board of Nursing, Concord, NH
License for Practical Nursing, 1976 (October).

Secondary School:  Berlin High School, Berlin, NH.

Graduated 1975.

EXPERIENCE:

1997-Present Chief Operating Officer Coos County Family Health Services, Berlin, NH.

1991-1997

1986-1991

1983-1986

Responsible for all Clinical Services Coordinator’s duties. Supervise volunteers.
Responsible for administration and overall activities of clinical services of CCFHS's
sites in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer.

Clinical Services Coordinator, Coos County Family Health Services, Berlin, NH.

Responsible for the day-to-day administration and overall activities of clinical services at
CCFHS in conjunction with the Medical Director and CEO. Supervises all clinical
support staff, including office nurses. Works closely with Medical Director on
scheduling and clinical flow - related activities. Implements and monitors quality
management programs.

Site Coordinator, Coos County Family Health Services, Berlin, NH.

Coordinator of three programs Family Planning, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, and
HIV/AIDS. Responsible for overall clinic operation and services to over 1,000 clients.
Supervise two staff counselors. Inventory and order all medical and pharmaceutical
supplies for the agency. Counseling skills related to contraception, sexually transmitted
diseases, HIV/AIDS, reproductive anatomy and physiology, and related issues. Complete
charting documentation. Nursing diagnosis and process. Follow-up lab results, referrals,
and medical services. Assist with forming policies, protocols and procedures. Attend
nursing seminars and workshops for continued education.

Clinical Nurse/Counselor, (Family Planning and WIC Nutrition Programs),
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc., Berlin, NH.

Provided clinical services to the agency’s 850 family planning clients and 865 WIC
clients. Duties included Nursing measures and laboratory test. Counseled clients on
health related issues and nutrition.



1976-1983

1976-1977

L.P.N. Charge Nurse, St. Vincent de Paul Nursing Home, Berlin, NH.

Responsible for twenty-nine residents. Supervised four nurse’s aides. Gave oral reports.
Administered medication by mouth or injection (including narcotics). Performed
complete nursing care including sterile or clean dressing techniques, ostomy care, catheter
care, use of oxygen and suction machines, and obtained cultures and specimens.
Transcribed physician’s orders and assisted as needed. Complete charting documentation
including nursing process, assessment, diagnosis, care plans, client goals, outcomes and
nursing interventions.

Private Duty Nurse, Androscoggin Valley Hospital, Berlin, NH.

Responsible for one patient. Provided complete nursing care, transcribed physician
orders, complete documentation and follow-up. Responsible directly to physician and
family. Administered medication. Assisted with transfer. Patient and family teaching.



MELISSA M FRENETTE, CPA

FUNCTIONAL SUMMARY

Certified Public Accountant with over twelve yvears of experience in public accounting. Experienced
in training and supervising staff, managing multiple on-going engagements and facilitatng timely
income tax filing and reporting for firm clients.

EMPLOYMENT

2007-Present  Coos County Family Health Services Betlin, NH
Chief Financial Officer
Oversee the general operation of the Finance and Purchasing Depattments
Analyzes available data and suggests way to improve agency’s self sufficiency
Prepares budgets, reports and studies for CCFHS and all funding sources
Takes a leadership role in the annual financial audit
Performs employee evaluations and assigns tasks as appropriate
Attends applicable board and committce meetings

Possesses a through working knowledge of cost reporting requirements

2004-2007 Malone, Dirubbo & Company/Phillips & AssociatesLincoln, NH
Sentor Staff Acconntant
Conducted financial statement audits for multiple entities

Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements
Compiled and prepared loan package information

Consulted in business entity choices

Prepared personal and business income tax retuns

Prepared personal and business income tax projections
Prepared projected financial statements and cash flows
Consulted in inventory cost methods

Trained clients in use of accounting software

1995-2004 Driscoll & Company, PLLC Berlin, NH
Senior Staff Acconntant{ Office Manager

Supervised and trained office staff members

Managed work flow for deadline achievement

Installed and maintained accounting and tax software

Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements

Prepared payroll tax returns

Conducted 401{K) plan audits and financial statements

EDUCATION

1992-1995 Plymouth State University Plymouth, NH
B.S. Accounting, minor Mathematics
Graduated cum laude




COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Current Assistant Treasurer of Business Enterprise Development Corporation (BEDCO)

Former member Androscoggin Valley Economic Recovery (AVER) technology taskforce

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants



CURRICULUM VITAE
William J. Gessner, MD

Professional Experience:

Medical Director — Coos County Family Health Services — August, 2014 — present
Staff Physician, Coos County Family Health Services - September, 2012 - present

Institute for Family Health — January — 2010 - August - 2012

Co-Medical Director — Hudson Valley Health Specialties - 2000 - 2012
Co-Medical Director - Ulster Greene ARC - 2000 - 2012
Medical Director - UGARC - 1994 - 2000

Medical Director - Ulster Association for Retarded Citizens (currently Ulster Greene
ARC) Kingston, New York 1993 - Present

Medical Director - Ulster Rehabilitation Clinic
Kingston, New York 1993 - 2000

Co-Medical Director - Ulster Greene ARC
2000 - 2012

Co-Medical Director - Mountainside Residential Care Center
Margaretville, New York 1998 - 2012

Co-Medical Director - Margaretville Hospital
Margaretville, New York 2001 - 2012

Attending Physician, Kingston Family Practice Center
Kingston, New York 1991 - 2000

Senior VP Academic Affairs - Mid Hudson Family Health Institute
Kingston, New York 1991 - 2000

Program Director, Mid-Hudson Rural Family Practice Residency Program
Kingston, New York 1990 - 2000

Associate Program Director, Ulster County Rural Family Practice Residency Program
Kingston, New York 1985 - 1990

Assistant Program Director, Ulster County Rural Family Practice Residency Program
Kingston, New York 1984 - 1985

Attending Physician, Woodstock Family Health Center
Woodstock, New York 1983 - 1991



Medical Director, Woodstock Family Health Center
Woodstock, New York 1983 - 1984

Private Practice of Family Medicine
Newport, New Hampshire 1978 - 1983

Pre-Medical Education

College: University of New Hampshire
BA, Mathematics 1969 - 1973
Summa Cum Laude, Phi Beta Kappa

Medical Education
Medical School: Dartmouth Medical School
Hanover, New Hampshire
1972 - 1975 M. D. Degree
Honors awarded in Internal Medicine
Maternal and Child Health, Ambulatory Care
Internship: University of Colorado Medical Center
Family Medicine 1975 - 1976
Residency: University of Colorado Medical Center
Family Medicine 1976 - 1978
Medical Boards:

Diplomate, National Board of Medical Examiners
Diplomate, American Academy of Family Physicians

(CV-William J. Gessner, MD) 8/14
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE |
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
" DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

“ Nicholas A. Toumpas
Comrmissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
- 603-271-4488 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4488

Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-271-4902 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

“! Associate
Commissioper

May 28, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan , 7ﬂ j&
and the Honorable Council - c/
State House 3 ﬂZ A’

Concord, NH 03301
- REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human bervices, Division of Community-Based Care Services,
Bureau of Developmental Services, Special Medical Sery ices Section, to enter into an agreement not to exceed
$42,332.00 with Coos County Family Health Services, inc., 54 Willow Street, Berlin, New Hampshire 03570,
(Vendor Number 155327-B001), to provide a Registered Nurse to act as the Nurse Coordinator for the Berlin
Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program, effective July .1, 2013 or date of Governor and Council approval,

whichever is later, through June 30, 2015.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the future operating account in State Fiscal
Years 2014 and 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without

further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-5191 DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HU'I‘VIAN SERVICES, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVSC, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

TR Beciriay | SV 20 oot o

561-500911 Specialty Clinics $21,166.00 $21,166.00 $42,332.00

EXPLANATION

This request will provide for a Registered Nurse to be the Nurse Coordinator for the Departments’
Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program, Berlin site. [The Nurse Coordinator shall take primary responsibility
for coordinating the planning and management of clirlié¢ and community-based heaith care, and shall ensure
continuity and follow-ups of children with neuromotor handicaps and their families residing in the area.

Currently, the Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program operates clinics in six locations: Berlin,
Concord, Derry, Keene, Lebanon and Manchester. 1t |s estimated that between 25-30 children will be served

during SFY 2014-2015 through the Berlin Clinic.




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
L and the Honorable Council

May 28, 2013

Page 2 of 2

The goal of the Neuromotor Disabilities Clinicd! Program is to provide community-based specialty
services, which are family-centered and easily accessible. [The purpose of this program is to provide management
and continuity of speciaity health care services for childrdn who have neuromotor conditions including cerebral
palsy, congenital anomalies, and other physical and neprological impairments, which require the combined

overview of a variety of specialists.

The model of service delivery consolidates clifjical evaluation services of children and families in
community-based locations for economy of scale and long-term stability of the medical consultation team.
Members of the team provide consultation services to the local community for school observations and technical
assistance related to the complex needs of children with) neuromotor problems. Continuity of care is assured
based on ongoing contact with the Nurse Coordinator.

A Request for Proposals that included performarnce measures was placed on the Department of Health
and Human Services website between January 16, 2013 and January 25, 2013. The Request for Proposals sought
services statewide. Only one (1) proposal was received fox this region.

After a thorough review of the proposals by thg evaluation committee, Coos County Family Health
Services was selected to provide the service for this regidn. A Bid Summary showing a comparison of the Coos
County Family Health Services, Inc., proposal to all other|proposals in this category is attached.

The Division of Community-Based Care Services has been contracting with Coos County Family Health
Services, Inc., for 23 years for provision of a Neuromotof Disabilities Clinical Program. The Division is pleased
with the performance of Coos County Family Health Seryices, Inc. under previous agreements.

Should Governor and Executive Council determ|ne not to authorize this request between 25-30 children
with neuromotor handicaps and their families in Coos Cdunty would not have access to coordinated planning and
management of clinic and community-based health care.

This agreement contains a provision to extend this award for up to two additional years contingent upon
satisfactory service, sufficient funding, and the approval pf the Governor and Executive Council.

Area served: Coos County
Source of funds: 30% Federal from Title V Block Grantjand 70% General funds,.

In the event that Federal funds become no longer availgble, General Funds will not be requested to support this

program.
Respectfully submitted,

%m

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

Approyed by: b m,\ r

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Servites’ Mission is to join communities and fomilies
in providing opportunities for citizets to achieve health and independence.
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SCORING SUD’JEVLARY SHEET

REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS
NEUROMOTOR DISABILITIES CLINICAL PROGRAM
Applicant: *Coos County Family Health Services) Inc.
Site: Berlin Neuromotor Chinic

Total Available Average Score

. Individual Qualification/Capacity { 5 points) 3
2. Clinical Experience {10 points) 9
3. Organizational Experience (10 points) 10
4. Capacity to Perform Scope.of Services (20 points) 16
5. Letters of Support/Reference/CV {10 points) 10
6. Service Description (30 points) 23
7. Budget Plan/Cost for Services Rendered (10 points) _8
8. Format . { 5 points) ]

TOTAL (190 points) 84

Reviewers:

Diane McCann, RN, MS, PNP, Retired State E_rr+)loyee. (Previously had been Clinical Coordinator
for Special Medical Services.)

Jane Hybsch, RN BSN MHA, Administrator, Megdicaid Care Management Programs, Office of
Medicaid Business and Policy. (Former Administrator, Special Medical Services.)

Alicia M. L’Esperance, BS/BA, Program Manager, Partners in Health Program.

*This was the only proposal received, for the Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program, for this
service area.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Nurse Coordinator -- Neuromoter Disabilities Program Specialty Clinic
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Connw"%(or hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION. _

1.1 State Agency Name 112 State Agency Address
1P9 Pleasant Street

Special Medical Services Section Concord, NH

Burean of Developmental Services 03301-3857

Division of Community Based Care Scrvices

1.3  Contractor Name 4  Contractor Addruess
SH ‘Willow Street

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

erlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Numiber 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95.93-930010-5191-561-
603-752-3669 500911 June 30, 2015 $42,332.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
§03-271-8i8!

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Conunissianer

1.11

Contractor Sfila!ure

{12 Name and Titic of Contractor Signatory

Adele D, Woods, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of

ylogjia

On

NH , County of

, before the undersigned officer,

o6 S.

bersonally appeared the person identified in block +.12, or

satisfactorfly proveu to be the person whose name is signed in block .11, and acknowiedged that sthe executed this document i the

capacily indicated in block 1.12.

RENS

{Seal}

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

S

heth.

1.13.2 Name and Tifle of Notar'y of Justice of

Linds. Blanche 4l

thc écncc

Wd,ﬂq 1@3 }C/

LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Pubiic

M\L Commission Expires September 17, 2013

1.}5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.4 State Agency Signature
\_’—)7 WMM Q—&J/i&( Nancy L. Rollins, Associale Commissioner
1.16  Approval by théN.H. Department of Administration, Djvision of Personnel (if applicabie)
By: Director, Om:
1.17 Approval by the Aftorney Genera) (Form, Substance and :Execution)
B = ) e n On: /2 AL, 2013
Y Yennae rrpeick A = : .
1.18  Approvel by the Governor and Execntive Councll
By: On:
Page | of 4

Y13



2. EMPLGYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE, PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly deseribed in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor {or any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. ‘

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereef, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreemeat
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Pag
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the tota! of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8. :

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OFPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
. Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,

and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities

, which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
inciuding, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
: laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all

applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall

not discriminate against employees or applicants for
. employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,

handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the

- United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the

provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the

- Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of

ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

. 7. PERSONNEL.
* 7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all

personnel necessary to perform the Services, The Confractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a peried of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to

. perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State

employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement,

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:



8. EVENTOF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1; Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shail constitute an event of default hereunder
{“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination,;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
* of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVYATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reasen of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
- recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memeranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shali be returned to the State upon demand or upen
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
_chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION, In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Centractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen {15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Pag

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ali
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without th
prior written consent of the State. :

13, INDEMNIFICATION, The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein

- contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
- sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
" reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall

survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: ‘ _
14.1.1 comprehensive general Hability insurance against ail
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering ali
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

=3 of 4
Contractor Initials: _
Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insyrer to eadeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{*Workers” Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.  °

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approvat of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shali not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are

for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein

shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIJAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth

-in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
‘reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of

; this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
"be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
- provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and

effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may

" be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
: be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and

understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

4 0f4
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Date;



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

‘B@(:% )4 61;{5@ (‘; n , of, Coos County Family Health Services do hereby certify that:

of Coos County Family Health Services

I am the duly elected i

Inc. /

2. The following are true copies of two r¢solutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Coos County Family H;é;lth Services corporation, duly held on February 21,
2013; |

RESOLVED: That this corporation may entdriinto any and all contracts, amendments, renewals,

revisions or modifications thereto, with the Stdte of New Hampshire, acting through its Department

of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, or Chief Executive Officer is hereby
authorized on behalf of this corporation to entq r;into said contracts with the State and to execute any
and all documents, agreements, and other ;instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necgssary, desirable, or appropriate.

é\‘d{f‘(f DNoldods — ssteauy appointed (liieC Exeoutive Mimer

of the corporation.
3. The foregoing resolutions have not bden amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of /4 O / 5 N ,20/3 .

7 ! '
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto |set my hand as the :Séar?eﬁ §¢ of the
corporation this Qiﬁ day of A%,ﬂﬁ / ,20 1A

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos
The foregoing instrument was acknowl edged before me this Qﬂ# day of ZZZ’:’: [ .20 B

Notary H u.b‘ic/Justice of the Peace

My Comruission Expires: LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 17, 2013

(Certificate of Vote/Authority) 3/12




NH Department of Heal

STANDARD
SCOPE OF

DATE:
whichever is later, thrugh June 30

Page S of 31

th and Human Services

EXHIBIT A
?

[ =
b

pERVICES

Commencing upon date of Governgr,and Council approval or July 1, 2013,

2015

?

CONTRACT PERIOD: Juiy1,2013 to  Jund 30, 2015
CONTRACTOR: |
NAME: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
ADDRESS: 54 Willow Street
Berlin, NH
03570
TELEPHONE: 603-752-3669
FAX: 603-752-3027
EMAIL: awoods@ccfhs.org
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Adele D. Woods, M .;Chief Executive Officer

The Nurse Coordinators for the Neuromotor Disabi

Special Medical Services Section will focus on

centered and community-based, comprehensive assg

with Neuromotor disabilities.

iI. General Provisions:

A. The Contractor will consult with the S
resource location and coordination of co

Program activities include participation
activities as assigned by the Administrat

In the event of a vacancy in any of]
position(s). The Special Medical Ser
selection process.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit A ~ Scope of Services
January 2009

ities Program Specialty Clinics contracted with the
providing coordinated, culturally-sensitive, family-
rssments of children (from birth to 2lyears of age)

becial Medical Services Section regarding planning,
nmunity-based services. ‘

in the Neuromotor Team Meetings, and additional
pr or designee, Special Medical Services Section.

the positions, the Contractor shall recruit for the
ices Section shall maintain final approval in the

Contractor Initials: é&

o1,

Date;




2. Required activities of the Nurse Coordinator shall

In addition, the Special Medical Servi
to ensure continuity of service delivery}

The Contractor will provide docume
statistics through the reporting mech
Section’s administrative staff. Com

needs in an approved format and

requested at any time during the conts

to submit.

2.1. The Nurse Coordinator shall function as
and take primary responsibility for establi

22

23

2.4

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit A — Scope of Services

January 2009

of clinic and community-based health
children with neuromotor handicaps and

Page 6 of 31

tes Section retains the right to reorganize services

htation of program accomplishments and clinical
ism established by the Special Medical Services
étes an annual report of activities and identified
;eﬁ'ame. Also, additional information may be
act period, which the Contractor shall be required

t

nclude, but not be limited to, the following:

n member of the Neuromotor Disabilities Program
;h;ing and/or coordinating the plan and management
¢are, and ensuring continuity and follow-ups for
their families.

2.1.1. Management consists of assessment, planning, implementation and evaluation of
health/medical services delivered, '

2.1.2 Neuromotor Disabilities Prografn to include attendance at assigned Neuromotor
Clinics and additional activities ps assigned by the Administrator, Special Medical
Services Section.

2,13 The anticipated annual schedjile of clinics is:

Berlin 4 clinics
Lebanon/Keene 12 clinics
Manchester 12 clinics
Derry 24 clinics
Concord 12 clinics

Coordinates, plans and implements the
care needs by obtaining and incorpora
agencies; reviews medical reposts and ¥
recommendations for the purpose of ini

medical treatment plan for the individual’s health
ing information from clients, families and service
yrites health and social history summaries and team
liating individualized care plans; and communicates

these recommendations to local care proyiders, families and service agencies.

Recommends, develops and monitors
specialty program to maintain consistent

clinical policies, procedures and standards for the
quality, effective and appropriate services.

Manages multidisciplinary team clini

in the assigned medical specialty program. This

includes scheduling and attending clinifs, directing team activities and serving as a liaison
between team, community providers and families. This results in the provision of integrated

and organized services to children.

Contractor Iniﬂals:]%/
pue:____ HYIF) I3

-
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nity-based care and school activities to team
zed services to children.

rare through assessment, planning, implementation

s'at clinics and/or home visits as a member of the
afppIication for Special Medical Services.

¢ial assistance with health-related costs.

Provides families with support in ident:Fing and accessing resources for health coverage

¢ planning personnel regarding resources, and
itions, diagnostics and care planning.

plines in identifying and meeting the physical,
nai habilitation needs of children with neuromotor

ues and education to professional/non-professionai
d group meetings to evaluate program needs and
status of children (0-21) using standardized

families about health -condition, and develops

Identifies, recommends, coordinates ang utilizes available community resources to meet the
d! functions as a liaison among agency, family and

ars, clinical training programs and conferences for

rofessionals and the public. This provides an

2.5  Provides information regarding commy
members to facilitate integrated and organi

2.6  Provides direct, on-site specialty nursing
and evaluation of treatment/education playg
health care team.

2.7  Provides families with information on the

2.8
{e.g., NH Medicaid programs) and for fin

2.9 Consults with hospital-based discharg
coordination of community-based consuit4

2.10 Works collaboratively with other disc
developmental, psychological and emotid
disabilities.

2.11 Demonstrates specialized clinical techni
caregivers in order to relay specialty knowledge.

2.12 Attends and participates in advisory ag
develop long-range program goals.

2.13 Assesses developmental and health
tests/observation techniques.

2.14 Teaches and counsels children and
patient/client informational materials.

2.15  Advocates for the rights and needs of chjildren who are disabled and their famiiies.

2.16
needs of children and their families,
team so that health care is accessible to all'children.

2.17 Plans, teaches and participates in sem;j
individuals and/or groups of health pr
understanding of the clinical condition and its effect on the child and family.

2.18

members and community providers re
autonomy, need for referral and continu

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit A — Scope of Services
January 2009

Provides nursing consultation to chiklren who are disabled, their families, other team
parding management of heaith needs, promotion of

ty of service.

3

Date:

Contractor Initials; ﬁé’_ﬂ/



Maintains and updates clieat records and assur

es confidentiality of information that services are

provided in accordance with policies and procedures of the Special Medical Services Section, NH

Department of Health & Human Services.

2.19

providers to upgrade their knowledge and

2.20

221

222

2.23

224

2.25

2.26

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exh
January 2009

Participates with team members to p.

Participates in the planning, developmen

with the Special Medical Services Section

Page 8 of 31

rovide educational programs for families/heaith
skills.

t and evaluation of program goals and objectives
s:administrative staff,

Participates with the Special Medical Services Section in developing, implementing and

revising quality assurance activities and sti

Attends Neuromotor Coordinator Meetir

possible.

Documents coordination/care manageme
reports, client contacts/encounter sheets,
Medical Services Section, and completes §

Reviews applications and makes deteny
established Special Medical Services Seq
Reviews financial eligibility status ba
expenditures of State funds. This process
and/or financiaily disabled children.

Meets with the Special Medical Servi
evaluate and integrate formal education
scheduled.

Completion of an annual report of fiscal

ibit A — Scope of Sewvices

andards of care,

gs of the Special Medical Services Section when
nt activities monthly through phone logs, activity
and submits these reports monthly to the Special
a0 annual report all in a timely fashion for payment.
inations of medical condition eligibility based on
:tion protocols and professional nursing judgment.

sed on State office guidelines and authorizes
assures that the appropriated funds go to medically

ces Section’s administrative staff to jointly plan,
al program activities with job responsibilities as

year activities and program accomplishments.

Contractor Initials: A?&
Date: (‘IL,/ .ﬁ-qt [A
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT B

METHODS AND CONDITIONS PR

ECEDENT TO PAYMENT

gyments shall be made during SFY 2014 and SFY
lthhstandmg anything to the contrary herein, the
ay be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
arily completed in accordance with the terms and

The Contract Price shall not exceed $42,332.00. P
2015 in accordance with the Budget attachment. N
Contractor agrees that funding under this agreement:
non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
the said services or products have not been satisfac
conditions of this agreement.

Reimbursements for services provided shall be made y the State on a monthly basis after receipt, review
and approval of monthly expenditure reports submi ed by the Contracter to the State. These reports,
which are based on a budget approved by the State, hall be in a form satisfactory to the State and shall
be submitted no later than twenty (20} working day 'after the close of the month. In addition to the
. monthly expenditure reports required and not later th n!s:xty (60) days after the end of the budget period,
the Contractor shall submit a final expenditure report i & form satisfactory to the State.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services.
Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with applicable State and
Federal laws and reguiations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such payments for capital
additions or improvements, dues to societies and o amzatnons entertainment costs or any other costs
not approved by the State. The Contractor must al o have written authorization from the State prior to
purchasing any equipment with a cost in excess of we hundred dollars ($500) and/or with a useful life
beyond one (1) year.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisl tlve action by the NH General Court may impact on

the services described herein, the State retains the
agreement.

The Contractor and/or the State may amend the coq
or the creation of new line items provided these am
amendments shall only be made upon written ¢

nght to modify expenditure requirements under this

tract budget through line item increases, decreases
endments do not exceed the Contract Price. Such
quest to and written approval by the State with

programmatic justification.

in the event of a vacancy in any of the key personnel positions, the Special Medical Services Section is
authorized to direct any and all budget revisions degmed necessary and appropriate by the Administrator
to assure continuity of services as outlined in Exhibit/A, including the cost of advertisement.

The Contractor shall be paid only far the total number of hours actually worked at the identified hourly rate
as designated in the Budget. The total of all paymeénts made to the Contractor for costs and expenses
incurred in the performance of the Services during {the period of the contract shall not exceed forty-two
thousand three hundred thity-two dollars ($42,332.00.00). As directed by the State, funds may be
adjusted, if needed and justified, between State fiscal years based upon actuai incurred expenses.

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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NH Department of Health;and Human Services

STANDARD

EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Gontractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,

in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contrach

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If th
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

o hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

e Contfractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility
Department for that purpose and shall be made and rema

4, Documentation: In addition to the determination
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereu
support an eligibility determination and such other infor
funish the Department with all forms and documentatio
may request or require.

. 5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that al

termmatlons shall be made on forms provided by the
é at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

qrms required by the Department, the Contracter shall
der, which file shall include all information necessary to
dtion as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
regardlng ellglblllty determinations that the Department

applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals

declared ineligibie have a right to a fair hearing regarding|that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and

agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearin

il out an application form and that each applicant or re-
in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees| that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of e, Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed fin Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this

Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if jti

jis determined that payments, gratuities or offers of

employment of any kind were offered or received by any pfficials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or

Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anythin to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other

document, contract or understanding, it is expressly und rstood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments

will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for

sts incurred for any purpose or for any services provided

to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Con o’t and no payments shali be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the ate on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations} prio to a determination that the individual is eligible for such

services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Natwithstanding anything

to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein

contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase setvices hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor's osts at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and

necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at

rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to

ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such !service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or

o

after receipt of the Finat Expenditure Report hereund
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expen

ithe Department shall determine that the Contractor has

lother than such costs, or has received payment in excess

of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party

funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunds r,:

in which event new rates shall be established,;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Conjtractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of

costs,

NH DHHS

Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions
January 2013

Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initigls:

Date:
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment E'y the Contractor in which event faillure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereundér. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agreles to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided tg any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period| of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contragt Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents; and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Peripd, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to incl| de without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requis tions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor] time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

8,2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall includé all records of application and eligibility (including ali
forms required to determine eligibility for each such re pi‘lent), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medicat Records: Where appropriate and as prescnbed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient o dervices.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit tb.the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAD standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and regérds maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. .

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contracter that the Cd niractor shall be held fiable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shail return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the perfermance of the services and the ontract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state|/laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes dir tly connected to the administration of the services and the
- Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure By any party of any information concerning a recipient for

" any purpose not directly connected with the administrafion of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibied except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained hereih the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reasgn whatsoever,

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

NH DHHS Contractor Initials: _@4

Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions /
January 2013 Date: ‘Q,‘? /3
Page 2 of 4
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12,1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim [financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Coniractor to the date of the report and centaining such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the

Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shalt be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Confract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary

statement of progress toward goals and objectives sta
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs:
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon pa
all the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such
performed after the end of the term of this' Contract and/o
pravided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expend
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Depart
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases,

resulting from the performance of the services of the Conty

d in the Proposal and other information required by the

Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
(rhent of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and

Obligations_ as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
r survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
|ture Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
ment shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
such sums from the Contractor.

research reports and other materials prepared during or
act shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this {report, document etc’) was financed under a Contract with the State of New

Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Serv

Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were

of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchase
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHH
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochure
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials pr)
from DHHS.

ces, with funds provided in part by the State of New
avallable of required, e.g., the United States Department

under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
S will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
:{resource directories, protocols or guidelines, pasters, or
oduced under the contract without pricr written approval

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Law
providing services, the Contractor shali comply with all |
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public

and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
ws orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an

order or duty upen the contractor with respect to the ope alion of the facility or the provision of the services at such

facility. If any governmental license or permit shali
performance of the said services, the Contractor will pro
the terms and conditions of each such license or pe

Ereqmred for the operation of the said facility or the
fe said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
'lt In connection with the foregoing requirements, the

Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the: 'term of this Contract the facilities shalt comply with all

rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Sta
agency, and shail be in conformance with local building &

iOffice of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
d zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the C n}ractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall

retain the responsibility and accountability for the functio
the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated funcii
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of

" or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor's performanc
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contra
those conditions.

(s) Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
on(s) This is accomplished through a written agreement
e subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
|s not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same

tor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

- how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the

NH DHHS

Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions
January 2013

Page 3of 4

Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to jperform the activities, before delegating the function
Have a written agreement with the subcontractgr that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and
subcontractor's performance is not adequate

Caontractor initials: ?@
Date: Lll 0 ? / ?
I'/ TF



Provide to DHHS an annual schedule

DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for impro

action.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of ex

reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting pr

laws, regulations, rules and orders.

Page 13 of 31

Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an orgoing basis
ide
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's per

Dtjfying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
ormance wiil be reviewed

yement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective

following meanings:

hense determined by the Department to be allowable and
nciples established in accordance with state and federal

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: !If applicable, shall mean the document su
the Department and containing a description of the Servi

pmitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
bes to be provided io eligible individuals by the Contractor

in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contrgc!:t and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue

for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide
time or that specified activity determined by the Departmg

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state fawg
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Conty

o eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
nt and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
te mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be

actor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract

will not supplant any existing federal funds available for theése services.

NH DHHS

Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions
January 2013

Page 4 of 4
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NH Department of Heal
STANDARD

ADDITIONAL SPE

Page 14 of 31
th and Human Services

EXHIBIT C-I

CIAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 7.2 of the General Provisions
“7.2. The Contréctor shall not hire, and shal
who has a contractual relationship with the S

appointed, without prior written consent of the
hisfher successor shall determine whether a ¢

Subparagraph 9.3. of the General Provisions
paragraph added: )

Q

corporation with whom it is engaged in a comL

f this agreement is hereby amended to read:

not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
ined effort to perform the services, to hire any person
late, or who is a State employee or official, elected or
State. The Contracting Officer specified in Block 1.9 or
pnfiict of interest exists.”

bf'this agreement is deleted and the foliowing

*9.3. The State, and anyone it shall designat
disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in who

b and the Contractor shall have authority to publish,
‘or in part, all data, provided such data, when

published, disclosed, distributed or otherwise lised, shall not disclose any personal identifiers or
confidentia! information as to any individual off organization without the prior written consent of such

individual or organization.”

Paragraph 14. of the General Provisions of this.agreement is hereby amended to read:

*14.1. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, for the benefit of the

State, the following insurance:

14.1.1.

Comprehensive general lidbility insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000

each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate.

14.2. The policies described in subparagraph 14.1. of this paragraph shall be the standard form

employed in the State of New Hampshire. E

ch policy shatl contain a clause prohibiting cancellation

[4

or modification of the policy earier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof has been received

by the State.”

The following paragraphs shall be added to th

*22.1. Records apnd Accounts Between th
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep ¢
with the Services including, but not limited
telephone calls and clerical materials and s

invoices, bills and other similar documents.”T

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit C1~ Additienal Special Provisions
January 2009

e General Provisions of this agreement:

b ‘Effective Date and the date seven {7) years after the

etailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection
to, costs of administration, transportation, insurance,
rvices. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts,

pdn

Contractor Initials;
Date: %Zg;i 2%
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“22.2. Between the Effective Date and the dale seven (7) years after the Compietion Date, at any
time during the Contractor's normal business hours and as often as the State shall demand, the
Contractor shall make available to the State| all records pertaining to matters covered by this
agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State to audit, examine and reproduce such records and
to make audits of all invoices, materials, pa rolls recaords of personne], data (as that term is
hereinafter defined} and other information relati g to all matters covered by this agreement. As used
in this paragraph, “Contractor” includes all persgnis, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by or
under common awnership with, the entity identjfied as the Contractor in Block 1.3 of these General
Provisions."

*22.3. Inspection of Work Performed: The |State or an authorized representative shall, at ali
reasonable times, have the right to enter into| Contractor's premises, or such other places where
duties under the contract are being performed, to inspect, monitor or otherwise evaluate the work
being performed. The Contractor and all subcontractors must provide access to all reasonable
tacilities and assistance for State representatives. All inspections and evaluations shall be performed
in sushi manner as will not unduly delay work.” |

"22.4. Under the provisions of the Contract, personnel benefits for the Key Personnel shall be
consistent with and in accordance to any ado ted personnel policies of the contractor specified in
Block 1.3. Health insurance benefits shall be designated by the Contract Budget”

“22.5. Third-Party Reimbursement and other sources of health services funding. The Contractor in

Block 1.3 shall recover, to the maximum extent ffeasibie, third-party revenues to which it is entitled for
health services prowded Benef' iciaries will no ﬁave any charges levied against them. Procedures
outlined by Contractor‘in Block 1.3 shall iden fy all persons served who are eligible for third-party
reimbursement, and shall be implemented at & contract sites. All income generated through third-
party reimbursement shall be retained by th Contractor for the activities identified in Standard
Exhibit A: Scope of Services. Records of the eamnings and disposition of income must be maintained
in the same manner as outlined in paragraph 22.1.”

5. Following the approval by the Governor and Exkeécutive Council, this contract shall commence on or
about July 1, 2013 and terminate on June 30,2015, with an option for renewal by way of a 2-year
extension (July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017} subj t to avallabihty of funding and priorities, satisfactory
performance of the Scope of Services by th ;Contractor mutual agreement by the parties and
approval of contract renewals by the Governor pnd Executive Council.

6. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreeme. tito the contrary, all oblsgatlons of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the con nh.lance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued app opnatnon or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or av :iab:hty of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eli lnates or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
avallab'hty of funding for this Agreement and IScope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of

Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall é State be liabte for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In

event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shalllhave the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon givingthe Contractor notice of such reduction, termination -
or modification. The State shall not be requited to transfer funds from any other source or account
into the Account identified in block 1.6, or any gther account, in the event funds are reduced or

unavailable,

NH DHHS, Office of Business Qperations Contractor Inilials: W
Standard Exhibit C1- Additiona! Speciat Provisions
January 2009 Date:,
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-F

EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractot’

R?EE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle I; 41 U.S.C.
s representative,. as identified in Sections 1.11 and

1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cer

ALTERNATIVE ! - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INL

tlf cation:

)IVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVI ES CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACT(

This certification is required by the regulations img
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subfit|
regulations were amended and published as Part 1l of
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by in
award, that they wili maintain a.drug-free workplace. §
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-co
cerfification to the Department in each federal fiscal y
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The ce
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency aw|
certification shall be grounds for suspension of pa
government wide suspension or debarment, Contracto

. Commis
NH Department of Health
129 Pleasa

R_S

lémenting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
eiD; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
erence sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
ection 3017. 630(c) of the regulation provides that a
tractors) that is a State may elect to make one
ar in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
f cate set out below is a material representation of
rds the grant. Faise certification or violation of the
ments, suspension or termination of grants, or
using this form should send it to:

o,nef
and Human Services
t Street,

Concord, NH 08301-6505

The grantee certifies that it will or will continue t

A)
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees

dispensing, possession or use of a controlle
and specifying the actions that wili be taken

Establishing an ongoing drug-free -awar

(1)
(2)
()

4)

(k)

The dangers of drug abuse in th
The grantee's policy of maintain
Any available drug counseling,
and

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Req

January 2009
Page 1 of 2

The penalties that may be impos

p’lrovide a drug-free workplace by:

at the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
galnst employees for violation of such prohibition;

ess program to inform employees about
> workplace;

ng a drug-free workplace;
rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;

i

eg upon embloyees for drug abuse violations

Contractor Initials: M

tf29/13

pirements
Date:




(e)

Page 17 of 31

Making it a requirement that each emplgyee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a};

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employge will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statempnt; and

(2) Naotify the employer in writing of |s or her canviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workp ace no later than five calendar days after such
convictian;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d){2) from an employée or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted empléyees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant agtivity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for-the receipt of such notices. Notice

shall include the identification number(s)

f Taking one of the following actions,
subparagraph {d}(2), with respect to any

f each affected grant;

mployee who is so convicted

ithin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under

(1) Taking appropriate personnel aclion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the fequirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,-as

amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local

health, law enforcement, or othel

(g) Making a good faith effort te continue to mai
of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), {e), and {f).

dppropriate agency,

tain a drug-free workplace through implementation

{B) The grantee may insert in the space provided belbw the site{s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Piace of Performance (street address, city, county, state, ip code) {list each location)

54 Willow Street, Berlin, NH 03570

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not iden

Coos County Family Health Services

tiﬁed here.

From: 7/1/2013  To: 6/30/2015

{Contractor Name) {Period Covered by this Cet

Adele D. Woods, Executive Direclor

ification)

{(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

(ele K L bed

%‘/ i?//

(Contractor Representative Signature)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Qperations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requiremnents

January 2009
Page20f 2

{Date)’

Contractor init;

itjals: @
Date; Llf Q«CZ / '2.
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N NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD|EXHIBITE
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representativg, .as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS | °

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICEil CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CC.)NTRACTOR|
Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A l
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX ‘
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title V1 |
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV l
\

Contract Period: July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence n' officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an|employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation,| renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and Specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

- {(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds haye been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee ffany agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by p;eciﬁc mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,  (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identifietl as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify anf disclose accordingly.

This certification is 2 material representation of fact uponiwhich reliance was ptaced when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shali be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than|$100,000 for each such failure.

% IZ] ,Q Mm}é Adele D. Woods, Executive Director

(Contractor Representative Signature) {Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Titie)
Coos County Family Health Services (/ / 49 //3
(Contractor Name) (Odte] "1 -

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contradlor Initials:
-Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying
January 2009 Date:




NH Department of Health
STANDARD !
CERTIFICATION REGARDING I

and Human Services

=XHIBIT F
DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPON

SIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 1
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters,
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.1
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal
providing the certification set out below.

-

d

The inability of a person to provide the ce
in denial of participation in this covered tra
shall submit an explanation of why it cann
explanation will be considered in connecti
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether {
the prospective primary participant to furni
such person from participation in this tran

The certification in this clause is a materi
ptaced when DHHS determined to enter in
prospective primary participant knowingly
other remedies available to the Federal
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall
agency to whom this proposal (contract) i
participant learns that its cerification
erroneous by reason of changed circumsta

The terms “covered transaction,” "debarr
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “prima
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clay
and Coverage sections of the rules implen
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees
the proposed covered transaction be enter

tier covered transaction with a person who

voluntarily excluded from participation in
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F --

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsit;

January 2009
Page 1 of 3

Frovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

D549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

nd further agrees to have the Contractor's

? ‘'of the General Provisions execute the following

{contract), the prospective primary participant is

tification required below will not necessarily result

o

Q; enter into this transaction. However, failure of

sactlon If necessary, the prospective participant
ot provide the certification. The certification or
n with the NH Department of Health and Human

h a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
ction.

|, representation of fact upon which reliance was
o:this transaction. If it is later determined that the
endered an erroneous certification, in addition to
vernment, DHHS may terminate this transaction

prowde immediate written notice to the DHHS
submltted if at any time the prospective primary
s erroneous when submitted or has become
q',es.
d,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
Lcovered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
have the meanings set out in the Definitions
nent:ng Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should
rd into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
this covered transaction, unless authorized by

Contractor Initials: ﬁéﬂz

Date: ﬁ,/lé_i ' [2 3

ility Matters




7.

10.

Page 20 of 31

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wil

include the clause titled "Certification R

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,

modification, in all lower tier covered tranJ
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction
participant in a lower tier covered transac
involuntarily exciuded from the covered {
erroneous. A participant may decide the
eligibility of its . principals. Each parti

Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)| |

Nothing contained in the foregomg shall be
records in order to render in good fait
knowledge and information of a participa
possessed by a prudent person in the ordi

egarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
" provided by DHHS, without
actions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

may rely upon a cerification of a prospective
lon that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
ransaction, unless it knows that the certification is
method and frequency by which it determines the
cipant may, but is not required to, check the

e construed to require establishment of a system of
h the certification required by this clause. The
ntis not required to exceed that which is normally
nary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters |mto a lower tier covered transaction with a person

who is suspended, debarred, ineligible,
transaction, in addition to other remedies
terminate this transaction for cause or defg

or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
available to the Federal government, DHHS may
ult.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and

(2) Where the prospective primary participant
certification, such prospective participan

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F — ]
. Cerfification Regarding Debarmment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009
Page 2 of 3

its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered tran

(b}
or had a civil judgment rendered ag
offense in connection with obtainin
(Federal, State or local) transaction o
Federal or State antitrust statutes or ¢

falsification or destruction of record

property,

are not presently indicted for otherwis

()

entity {Federal, State or local) with ¢
paragraph {I}{b) of this certification; ang

(d)

public transactions (Federal, State or |

{contract).

;actions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period precedmg this proposal (contract) been convicted of

alnst them for commission of fraud or a criminal
q,, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
4 contract under a public transaction; violation of
mmission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
.. making false statements, or receiving stolen

L:

e criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental
Bmmlss;on of any of the offenses enumerated in

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more

dcal) terminated for cause or default.

srunable to certify to any of the statements in this
[ ‘shall attach an explanation to this proposal

Contractor Initials: M
Date: Lli/ ciql/ /?




LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier propos
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the
principals:

(a) are not bresently debarred, suspe

Page 21 of 31

al {contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
best of its knowledge and belief that it and its

ded, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,

or voluntarily excluded from p rtlc;patlon in this transaction by any federai

department or agency.

{b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,

such prospective participant shall

The prospective lower tier participant further
will include this clause entitled “Certification R

ach an explanation to this proposal {contract),

afr‘ees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it
gardlng Debarment, Suspension, lnellglbiilty and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier

. covered transactions and in all solicitations for |

L) K LA

bwer tier covered transactions.

Adédle D, Woods, Executive Director

(Contractor Representative Signature) {(Aut

4

Coos County Family Health Services

norized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Xye

(Contractor Name)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibjlity Matters

January 2009
Page 3of 3

(Dafk

e)

Contractor Initials: Mc/
ff/fzfz// 3

Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION|REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the GenerallProvisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of:the General Frovisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (con .r?ct) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions g¢f the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

4@ ﬁ Q Z{,égzéy Adele D. Woods, Executive Director

(Contractor Representative Signature)} (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Titie)
Coos County Family Health Services zL / 19 /[ 3
(Contractor Name) | (Dateﬁ o

January 2009

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations ei: Contractor Initjals;
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act
Date: Cﬁ .2?’ /3




NH Department of Health

STANDARD E

Page 23 of 31

and Human Services

=XHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any pportion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,

or library services to children under the age of 18, if th
directly or through State or local governments, by Fed
law does not apply to children’s services provided

Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities us
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
$1000 per day and/cr the imposition of an administrativ

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 ¢
certification: '

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contra
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227

7Y/ W)

£

2. services are funded by Federal programs either
eral grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
n; private residences, facilities funded solely by
sed for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
= compliance order on the responsible entity.

Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
f the General Provisions, to execute the following

ctor agrees to make reasconable efforts to comply
, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Adele D. Woods, Executive Director

{Contractor Representative Signature) {(Author]

Coos County Family Health Services

z&d Contractor Representative Name & Title)

woafiz

(Contractor Name) {Bate)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Bmoke

January 2009

Contractor Initials:
Date: ﬁl{éﬁl / ’%




NH Department of Health and Human Services

Page 24 of 31

STANDARD FXHIBIT 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILI

I'Y AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIAT{E AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Acgountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the

Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Ide

ntifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and

164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to| business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractgrs and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this ‘Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the

State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and

BUSIINESS ASSOCIA

3} .
iman Services.

(1) Definitions.

TE AGREEMENT

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.
b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given
Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given sy
Federal Regulations.

such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

ch term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the sam¢ meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation™ shall have the same mga

Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the sam
"CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Informatio
TitleX1, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the Amer

ing as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
an Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h, “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Po b1hty and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning
and shall include a person who qualifies as 4
Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164,
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

nd Security of Individually Identifiable Health

the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
;promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Contractor Initials; _@ﬁéi/

Date: L‘{ ch‘j// 3_




k. “Protected Health Information™ shall have

Page 25 of 31

he same meaning as the term “protected health

infornation” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Cove

Section 164.501.

designee.

indecipherable to unauthorized individuals

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the D

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security St
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subps

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” md
by a technology standard that renders protes

ed Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meanhing as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

ppartment of Health and Human Services or his/her

ndards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
rt C, and amendments thereto.

ans protected health information that is not secured
ted health information unusable, unreasonable, or
and is developed or endorsed by a standards

developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

under 45 C.F R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as

)

Business Associate shall not use, disclose,

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise |defined herein shall have the meaning established

ended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

maintain or transmit Protected Health Information

(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to pr(bvfide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the

Agreement. Further, the Business Associate
employees and agents, do not use, disclose,
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Secu

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and ¢
1. As required by law, pursuant to ]
Ing For data aggregation purposes fo.

To the extent Business Associate is permi
party, Business Associate must obtain, pri
assurances from the third party that such H
disclosed only as required by law or for the |
and (ii) an agreement from such third party
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such

The Business Associate shall not, unless
services under Exhibit A of the Agreeme
disclosure on the basis that it is required by
Covered Entity has an opportunity to objec
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, th
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all r¢

X

Standard Exhibit § - HIPAA Business Assaciate Agreement
September 2009
Page 2 of 6

¥

sliall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
ity Rule.

1
\dministration of the Business Associate;

Jef terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
r the health care operations of Covered Entity.

d under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third

of to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
HI will be held confidentially and used or further
purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
[

o; notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHL to

bteach.

such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
nt, disclose any PHI in response to a reguest for

law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
to the disclosure and to seck appropriate relief. If

e Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
2medies.

Contractor Initigls: %
Date: . oifi, f 3
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 3 of 6 Date:

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Ass

by additional restrictions over and above thos¢

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule,
additional restrictions and shall not disclose H

shall abide by any additional security safeguaroﬁs.

QOblisations and Activities of Bﬁsiness ASS04

Page 26 of 31

ociate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
the Business Associate shall be bound by such
HI in violation of such additional restrictions and

Business Associate shall report to the designg
any use or disciosure of PHI in violation o

piate.

ted Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
Fthe Agreement, including any security incident

the use and disclosure of PHI contained herei

involving Covered Entity data, in accordance] w1th the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402,

The Business Associate shall comply with aIL sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part ], Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all pf its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of{PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered E t1ty to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA an the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require ali of its bugigess associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
1nc1udmg the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein |Thf: Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be redetving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from sych business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement r the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

" Within five (5) business days of receipt of 4 written request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall make available during no al business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relatin to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered E t;ty to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement. :

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a ])e51gnated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individuat in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an inflividual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI|available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable (overed Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

Section 164.526.
Contractor Initials: ﬂ&é‘/\/

af/gzcz 3
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered [Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordahce with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Busines§ Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordange with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accountmg of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate! shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Enti shalI have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwardin the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associgte to violate HTPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of terminatiop :of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associafe'in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such RHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Apreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any ot ill PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals ig z:wcordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affc:ct Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Busigess Assoc1ate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by m&mduals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.5 08.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Busjness Associate of amny restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has a ;‘eed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Busingss Associate’s use or disclosure of PHIL

Standard Exhibit | ~ HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: M
September 2009 /
Page 4 of 6 Oate: y :?_gl / 3
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 50f B

Miscellaneous

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this

Page 28 of 31

\Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately

terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either -
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure

the alleged breach within a timeframe specifie

that neither termination nor cure is feasible,

Secretary.

d by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Definitions and Regulatory References. All td rms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Brivacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in L%e Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,

to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule

eans the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to

amend the Agreement, from time to time as i
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Pr
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate al
réspect to the PHI provided by or created on b

Interpretation. The parties agree that any am}

s necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
jvacy and Security Rule, and applicabie federal and

cknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
ehalf of Covered Entity.

iguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit

Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this [Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalid‘L

can be given effect without the invalid term
this Exhibit I are declared severable,

Survival.

ty shall not affect other terms or conditions which
r condition; to this end the terms and conditions of

Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d angd standard contract provision #13, shall survive the

termination of the Agreement.

Contractor Inijiats:

Date:




N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly

Division of Community-Based Care Services
Bureau of Dev. Services, Special Medical Services
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executed this Exhibit L.

Coos County Family Health Services

The State Agency Name

Name of the Contractor

Ly B [,

Signature of Authori#d Representative

Nancy L. Rollins

Signature of Authorized Representative

Adele D. Woods

Name of Authorized Representative

Associate Commissioner

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Direcior

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

3/ %‘7/‘1 2/ 3
Date 4

Standard Exhibit | ~ HIPAA Business Associale Agreement
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Yool

Daté

Contractor Initjals:

Date: L/; é_,q/ /"i




